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Consolidated Eleven-Year Summary

Star Micronics Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Eleven fiscal years

Dec. 2021 Dec. 2020 Dec. 2019

For the year:
Net sales ¥64,360 ¥45,671 ¥60,652
Cost of sales 41,756 30,349 38,330
Selling, general and administrative expenses 15,189 13,149 16,505
Operating income 7,415 2,173 5,817
Other income (expenses) — net 549 715 (485)
Income before income taxes 7,964 2,888 5,332
Income taxes 2,174 1,131 1,486
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests 50 25 (208)
Net income attributable to owners of the parent 5,740 1,732 4,054
Net cash provided by operating activities 9,601 6,843 5,124
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 741 (1,253) (8,150)

Free cash flows 10,342 5,590 1,974
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (7,559) (2,136) (8,015)
Per share:
Basic net income ¥150.83 ¥ 49.07 ¥113.72
Diluted net income 142.38 42.46 99.34
Cash dividends applicable to the year 58.00 58.00 56.00
At year-end:
Current assets ¥65,707 ¥54,893 ¥56,830
Net property, plant and equipment 14,309 14,272 15,542
Total assets 82,361 71,622 76,394
Long-term liabilities 1,128 1,266 9,675
Total equity 61,728 49,822 50,790
Stock exchange price per share of common stock:
Highest ¥1,893 ¥1,720 ¥1,893
Lowest 1,416 945 1,258
Selected financial indicators:
Equity ratio (%) 741 68.2 65.2
Return on equity (%) 104 3.5 8.3
Dividend payout ratio (%) 38.5 118.2 49.2
Dividend on equity (%) 3.9 4.1 41

*Effective from the fiscal period ended December 31, 2018, Star Micronics Co., Ltd. changed its account settlement date from the end of February to
December 31. As a transitional period, the consolidated fiscal period for the fiscal period ended December 31, 2018 is based on and presented for the
10-month period from March 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018 for companies that fall within the scope of consolidation whose conventional account
settlement date is February 28 and the 12-month period from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018 for companies that fall within the scope of
consolidation whose account settlement date is December 31.
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Millions of yen (Except for per share data)

Dec. 2018 Feb. 2018 Feb. 2017 Feb. 2016 Feb. 2015 Feb. 2014 Feb. 2013 Feb. 2012
¥65,940 ¥60,773 ¥48,937 ¥54,458 ¥50,958 ¥43,482 ¥37,858 ¥41,654
40,478 38,511 30,825 33,558 31,355 28,047 24,683 25,753
15,750 16,052 14,505 15,165 14,126 12,829 11,595 11,948
9,712 6,210 3,607 5,735 5477 2,606 1,580 3,953
(1,029) 149 224 (383) 605 40 2,140 (724)
8,683 6,359 3,831 5,352 6,082 2,646 3,720 3,229
1,764 487 572 1,630 1,285 1,400 1,330 717
124 91 78 101 101 103 90 85
6,795 5,781 3,181 3,721 4,696 1,143 2,300 2,427
6,089 8,923 5,338 3,107 4,326 2,597 483 4,466
(2,950) (5,013) 813 (1,074) (2,501) (2,455) (1,908) (393)
3,139 3,910 6,151 2,033 1,825 142 (1,425) 4,073
(3,766) (2,926) 139 (2,180) (1,568) (1,394) (1,202) (2,092)
¥186.04 ¥155.68 ¥ 81.77 ¥ 87.98 ¥111.36 ¥ 2717 ¥ 54.66 ¥ 56.94
163.42 136.90 74.69 87.69 111.05 27.14
54.00 52.00 48.00 46.00 44.00 34.00 30.00 26.00
¥59,914 ¥59,635 ¥563,172 ¥50,367 ¥50,533 ¥41,233 ¥35,827 ¥38,302
15,521 14,076 12,926 14,360 15,309 14,327 13,476 10,289
79,935 77,363 68,351 67,828 70,261 59,303 52,564 51,925
10,046 9,697 9,935 2,021 617 524 303 407
49,312 47,447 43,755 50,200 51,903 45,698 40,710 36,980
Yen
¥2,270 ¥2,480 ¥1,770 ¥2,238 ¥1,885 ¥1,422 ¥988 ¥958
1,332 1,588 1,023 1,125 1,115 857 647 657
60.3 60.1 62.8 72.7 72.4 75.5 76.1 70.2
14.3 12.9 6.9 7.4 9.8 2.7 6.0 6.7
29.0 33.4 58.7 52.3 39.5 1251 54.9 45.7
4.1 4.3 41 3.9 3.9 3.4 3.3 3.0
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

OVERVI EW (Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020)

Business Environment

In 2021, economic conditions exhibited an overall
recovery trend. Despite the outbreak of new variants amid
the impact of COVID-19, and various other factors
including shortages in the supply of such components and
parts as semiconductors as well as delays in distribution,
this overall recovery was due mainly to the uptick in
vaccination rates and success of economic policies
implemented in each country. In Asia, China’s economy
generally remained firm. Despite concerns surrounding
further spread of the pandemic, economic conditions in
both the U.S. and Europe progressed toward a steady
recovery. On the domestic front, the economy in Japan
continued its positive turnaround notwithstanding certain
indications of weakness.

Net Sales (Millions of yen)
2020 2021 Change (%)
¥45,671 ¥64,360 40.9

In each of the major markets in which the Star Micronics
Group operates, a sharp increase in demand for the
Group’s mainstay machine tools overseas and in Japan
was seen. At the same time, demand for POS printers
was strong especially in the U.S. market.

Cash Dividends per Share Yer)
2020 2021 Change (yen)
¥58 ¥58 —

The annual cash dividend for the year under review was
¥58 per share, unchanged from the previous year.

Total Assets

(Millions of yen)
2020 2021 Change (%)
¥71,622 ¥82,361 15.0

While the balance of marketable securities declined, total
assets as of December 31, 2021 increased compared
with the end of the previous year owing to increases in
such accounting line items as cash and cash equivalents,
trade notes and accounts receivable, and inventories.

Free Cash Flows

(Millions of yen)
2020 2021 Change (%)
¥5,590 ¥10,342 85.0

Free cash flows came in at ¥10,342 million largely
reflecting the increase in income before income taxes.

Free cash flows = Operating cash flows + Investing cash flows

Capital Expenditures

(Millions of yen)
Operating Income (Milions of yer) 2020 2021  Change (%)
2020 2021  Change (%) ¥1,908 ¥1,926 0.9

¥2,173 ¥7,415 241.3

Operating income came in at ¥7,415 million owing mainly
to the substantial increase in net sales.

Net Income Attributable to

Capital expenditures amounted to ¥1,926 million. This
largely reflected maintenance and renewal expenses
primarily in the Machine Tools Segment.

Net Sales by Region

(Millions of yen)

Owners of the Parent (Milions of yer) 2020 2021  Change (%)
2020 2021 Change (%) Japan ¥ 5,754 ¥ 8,072 40.3

¥1,732 ¥5,740 231.5 USA 13,708 17,315 26.3

China 10,437 14,543 39.3

Net income attributable to owners of the parent amounted Others 15,772 24,430 54.9

to ¥5,740 million, once again largely reflecting the
substantial increase in net sales.
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INCOME ANALYSIS

Record high volume of machine tools sales

on the back of robust demand

In 2021, Star Micronics reported consolidated net sales
of ¥64,360 million (US$559,652 thousand), up ¥18,689
million, or 40.9%, compared with the previous year.

This increase was attributable to record high sales volume
and net sales in the Machine Tools and Special Products
segments, respectively. In 2021, economic conditions
exhibited an overall recovery trend. Despite the outbreak
of new variants amid the impact of COVID-19, and various
other factors including shortages in the supply of such
components and parts as semiconductors as well as
delays in distribution, this overall recovery was due
mainly to the uptick in vaccination rates and success
of economic policies implemented in each country.

In Asia, China’s economy generally remained firm.
Despite concerns surrounding further spread of the
pandemic, economic conditions in both the U.S.

and Europe progressed toward a steady recovery.

On the domestic front, the economy in Japan continued
its positive turnaround notwithstanding certain indications
of weakness. Under these circumstances, there was a
sharp increase in demand for the Star Micronics Group’s
mainstay machine tools overseas and in Japan in each
of the major markets in which the Group operates.

At the same time, demand for POS printers was strong
especially in the U.S. market. The cost of sales came to

Operating Income and
Operating Income Ratio
(Billions of yen, %)

(Yen)

14.7%

70'98L
¢e€9l

CLELL
€66

I Lo6v
Bl ov v

06'9€L

2/8 12/18* 12/119 12/°20 12/21

mmm (Operating Income
—o— Operating Income Ratio

Net Income per Share

2/"8 12/18* 12/119 12/°20 12/21

¥41,756 million (US$363,095 thousand), an upswing of
¥11,407 million, or 37.6%, compared with the previous
year. On this basis, gross profit climbed ¥7,282 million,
or 47.5%, year on year, to ¥22,604 million
(US$196,557 thousand).

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses
were ¥15,189 million (US$132,079 thousand), up ¥2,040
million, or 15.5%.

Taking into account each of the aforementioned
factors, operating income surged ¥5,242 million,
or 241.3%, year on year, to ¥7,415 million
(US$64,478 thousand).

Substantial growth in net income owing to the
significant increase in net sales

In 2021, other income — net came to ¥549 million
(US$4,774 thousand), down from ¥715 million in the
previous yeatr.

Based on the aforementioned, income before income
taxes amounted to ¥7,964 million (US$69,252 thousand),
an increase of ¥5,076 million, or 175.8%, compared with
the previous year. Net income attributable to owners of
the parent after deducting income taxes and net income
attributable to noncontrolling interests came to ¥5,740
million (US$49,913 thousand), an upswing of ¥4,008
million, or 231.5%, year on year.

Basic net income per share was ¥150.83 (US$1.31)
and diluted net income per share was ¥142.38 (US$1.24).

Cash Dividends per Share

(Yen)

2/18 12/18* 12/"19 12/20 12/21

= Basic Net Income
mmm Diluted Net Income

* The consolidated fiscal period for the fiscal period ended December 31, 2018 is based on and presented for a 10-month period for the Company and consolidated

subsidiaries in Japan and a 12-month period for overseas consolidated subsidiaries.
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The annual cash dividend was ¥58 per share,
unchanged from the previous year

As far as its policy toward the payment of dividends is
concerned, Star Micronics aims for a total consolidated
payout ratio of at least 50% that includes the repurchase
of its own shares while taking into consideration its
dividend on equity (DOE) ratio. In 2021, the Company’s
annual cash dividend was set at ¥58 (US$0.50) per share,
unchanged from the previous year. DOE came in at 3.9%,
down 0.2 of a percentage point year on year. In addition,
Star Micronics took steps to repurchase its own shares to
an amount totaling ¥2,266 million (US$19,704 thousand).
Based on the aforementioned, the Company’s total
consolidated payout ratio came in at 79.3%.

In this instance, Star Micronics has formulated a new
medium-term management plan that covers the three-year
period to 2024. From a shareholder return policy
perspective, Star Micronics is targeting a total
consolidated payout ratio of 50% or more including the
repurchase of its own shares based on a stable annual
dividend of ¥60 or more per share under this new plan.

In light of this policy, plans are in place to pay an interim
and year-end dividend of ¥30 per share for an annual cash
dividend of ¥60 per share, up ¥2 per share compared with
the year under review.

Turning to Star Micronics’ internal reserves, the
Company allocates funds to a wide range of areas
including investment in growth businesses with the aim
of ensuring sustainable growth. At the same time,

Star Micronics is working to enhance its corporate value
and improve shareholder returns.

FINANCIAL POSITION & LIQUIDITY

Increases in total current assets including cash
and cash equivalents as well as total assets

Total current assets stood at ¥65,707 million (US$571,365
thousand) as of December 31, 2021, up ¥10,814 million,
or 19.7%, compared with the end of the previous year.
While the balance of marketable securities declined
¥1,896 million compared with the previous year-end,

the upswing in total current assets largely reflected
year-on-year increases of ¥4,170 million, or 18.1%,

to ¥27,199 million (US$236,513 thousand) in cash and
cash equivalents, ¥4,254 million, or 29.9%, to ¥18,495
million (US$160,826 thousand) in trade notes and
accounts receivable, and ¥3,699 million, or 26.2%,

to ¥17,823 million (US$154,983 thousand) in inventories.
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The balance of net property, plant and equipment edged
up ¥37 million, or 0.3%, compared with the end of the
previous year, to ¥14,309 million (US$124,426 thousand).

The balance of investments and other assets declined
¥112 million, or 4.6%, year on year, to ¥2,345 million
(US$20,392 thousand). This downturn was mainly due to
a decline of ¥148 million, or 19.8%, compared with the
previous year-end in the balance of deferred tax assets,
to ¥599 million (US$5,209 thousand).

Accounting for each of these factors, the balance of
total assets as of the end of year under review grew
¥10,739 million, or 15.0%, compared with the end of the
previous year, to ¥82,361 million (US$716,183 thousand).

Convertible bonds redeemed in June 2021

Total current liabilities stood at ¥19,505 million
(US$169,609 thousand) as of December 31, 2021,

a decline of ¥1,029 million, or 5.0%, compared with the
end of the previous year. While the balance of payables
increased ¥7,662 million, or 102.2%, year on year, to
¥15,160 million (US$131,826 thousand), this decline was
mainly due to the absence of convertible bonds totaling
¥8,007 million in the previous year.

Total long-term liabilities came to ¥1,128 million
(US$9,809 thousand) as of December 31, 2021, This was
¥138 million, or 10.9%, lower than the balance as of the
end of the previous year and largely reflected the
downturn in the balance of liability for retirement benefits
of ¥577 million, or 81.6%, compared with the previous
year-end, to ¥130 million (US$1,131 thousand).

Increase in equity owing to the conversion of
convertible bonds and further accumulation of
retained earnings

Total equity increased ¥11,906 million, or 23.9%,
compared with the end of the previous year, to ¥61,728
million (US$536,765 thousand). Principal movements
included an upswing in retained earnings of ¥3,516
million, or 9.2%, year on year, to ¥41,814 million
(US$363,600 thousand), and a drop in treasury stock —
at cost, a negative accounting line item, of ¥5,010 million,
or 41.5%, attributable to the conversion of convertible
bonds, to ¥7,067 million (US$61,452 thousand).

Owing to the increase in total assets, the equity ratio
came in at 74.1%, up 5.9 percentage points compared
with the end of the previous year. Equity per share as of
December 31, 2021 climbed ¥193.23 year on year,
to ¥1,576.64 (US$13.71).



Total Assets

(Billions of yen) (Billions of yen, %)
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CASH FLOWS

Repurchase of own shares and continued high
level of cash dividends on the back of an increase
in free cash flow

Net cash provided by operating activities came to ¥9,601
million (US$83,487 thousand). The principal cash inflows
came from income before income taxes of ¥7,964 million
(US$69,252 thousand), depreciation and amortization of
¥2,127 million (US$18,496 thousand), and an increase in
trade payables of ¥6,009 million (US$52,252 thousand),
which exceeded the major cash outflows of income taxes
— paid of ¥1,811 million (US$15,748 thousand), an
increase in trade receivables of ¥2,475 million (US$21,522
thousand), and an increase in inventories of ¥3,045 million
(US$26,478 thousand).

Net cash provided by investing activities came to
¥741 million (US$6,443 thousand). While such cash
outflows as purchases of property, plant and equipment
totaled ¥1,052 million (US$9,148 thousand), this was
more than offset by major cash inflows including a
decrease in short-term investments of ¥1,100 million
(US$9,565 thousand) and proceeds from sale of
marketable and investment securities of ¥1,410 million
(US$12,261 thousand).

Net cash used in financing activities amounted to
¥7,559 million (US$65,730 thousand). This largely
reflected a decrease in short-term bank loans of ¥2,500
million (US$21,739 thousand), payments for purchase of
treasury stock of ¥2,269 million (US$19,731 thousand),
and dividends paid to shareholders of ¥2,223 million
(US$19,330 thousandl).

Taking into account the aforementioned activities as
well as foreign currency translation adjustments on cash
and cash equivalents of ¥1,387 million (US$12,061

Equity and Return on Equity

2/18 12/18* 12/19 12/20 12/21

Cash Flows

(Billions of yen)

3.5%
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thousand) and the net increase in cash and cash
equivalents of ¥4,170 million (US$36,261 thousand),
cash and cash equivalents stood at ¥27,199 million
(US$236,513 thousand) as of December 31, 2021.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND
R&D EXPENSES

Investment mainly on maintenance and renewal
work in the Machine Tools Segment in 2021

In 2021, capital expenditures, which totaled ¥1,926 million
(US$16,748 thousand), were largely directed toward
maintenance and renewal work in the Machine Tools
Segment. In 2022, Star Micronics plans to undertake
capital expenditures of ¥3,291 million focusing mainly on
a large-scale renewal of the Company’s Kikugawa Factory
in the Machine Tools Segment and construction of a new
building at one of its overseas subsidiaries.

Special Products —Capital expenditures in the Special
Products Segment increased ¥71 million compared with
the previous year, to ¥182 million (US$1,582 thousand),
in 2021. In 2022, the Company is budgeting expenditures
of ¥306 million in this segment mostly for molds used in
the manufacture of new products.

Machine Tools — Capital expenditures in the Machine Tools
Segment climbed ¥97 million compared with the previous
year, to ¥1,667 million (US$14,496 thousand), in 2021,

In 2022, the Company is looking to undertake expenditures
of ¥2,887 million. This includes a large-scale renewal of the
Company’s Kikugawa Factory, the construction of a new
building at an overseas subsidiary, and facilities and
equipment to help boost production capacity.
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New product development in each segment
Underpinned by its precision processing and assembly
technologies nurtured over a long period, the Star
Micronics Group undertakes research and development
activities in a bid to further create added value. In addition
to developing products and technologies that are directly
related to its current operations, the Group actively works
to set up new businesses.

The principal results of research and development
undertaken during the past year under review were as
follows, with total research and development expenses
totaling ¥1,649 million.

New Business Projects —In the second half of the year
under review, Star Micronics launched the New Business
Project as a means to create new businesses regardless
of each business segment. Against the backdrop of a
wide range of social issues including the declining
workforce attributable to the falling birthrate and aging
population as well as such environmental concerns as
carbon neutrality, the Company took steps to consider
ways in which it could create new business value that
contributes to the improvement of customers’ business
efficiency from the three logistics DX, store DX, and
production DX domain perspectives in 2021.

The amount of research and development expenses
associated with this business segment is ¥49 million.

Special Products Segment—In the year under review,
Star Micronics developed the thermal receipt printer,
TSP100IV and StarXpand® SDK for React Native,

a software development kit that supports the control of
Star printers.

TSP100IV is the Company'’s latest model in the
best-selling TSP100 series. In addition to its distinctive
appearance and more stylish polygon design, TSP100IV
achieves a downsizing of approximately 20% compared
with the current TSP100IIl model. Over and above its dual
USB and LAN interface, TSP100IV allows customers to
switch from a wired to a wireless LAN using the
Company’s Wireless LAN Unit. This new model is also
compatible with Android Open Accessory Protocol and
addresses a wide range of diversifying needs including
wired communication and power supply from Android™
and Windows® terminals at the same time.

StarXpand SDK for React Native is a software
development kit that supports the control of Star printers
for the cross-platform framework React Native.
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In facilitating application development for various
operating systems including iOS, Android, and Windows,
StarXpand SDK for React Native helps improve
development efficiency where a single application is
developed for multiple operating systems and in other
cases including the transition to another system.
Star Micronics has also enabled application developers to
more easily integrate its printers into their systems by
providing an Application Programming Interface (API) to
easily and intuitively program the connection to the
Company'’s printers and facilitate printer control.
Research and development expenses for the Special
Products Segment totaled ¥748 million.

Machine Tools Segment— Star Micronics developed
the mid-range SL-7 and SL-10 and SR-32JIll models
of sliding head-type automatic lathes in the year
under review.

SL-7 and SL-10 are new products that address the
increasingly complex and diverse small part machining
needs of the information and communication,
automotive, and medical fields. Utilizing a tool holder for
turning and a cross drilling unit for multi-processing in a
vertical tool post layout, these new products help
enhance multi-processing capability through wider
tooling flexibility on a compact machine size.

Equipped with a 6-spindle unit with Y2-axis control for
backworking as a standard feature, both the SL-7 and
SL-10 offer enhanced multi-processing capability in
backworking thereby improving productivity through the
efficient splitting of processes. Moreover, new functions
allow centralized management of data required for
machining such as programming, tool unit and
geometry offset.

The SR-32Jlll is the latest model in the market-
acclaimed 32-mm maximum machining diameter SR-32J
Series of Swiss-type automatic lathes. With a flip-up
door with a wide opening, a swing-type control panel to
facilitate operations in the optimum position, and a
redesigned tool post for rear-end work, this model
incorporates many of the requests fielded from
customers. As such, the SR-32Jlll has been developed
to ensure easier use and improved reliability.

As far as software development is concerned,

Star Micronics added new functions to facilitate

program input/output to its Star Monitoring & Operator
Support System (SMOOSS-i), a web-based application
which allows users to remotely monitor machine status.



In addition, the Company developed Step Cycle Pro.,
an update of its step cycle function that employs an
oscillating motion on the feed shaft for effective chip
breaking. Step Cycle Pro. allows the operator to easily

set the optimum oscillation conditions, greatly reducing
the time required for machine set up.

Research and development expenses for the Machine
Tools Segment amounted to ¥852 million.

SALES FRAMEWORK AND NET SALES Net Sales by Region
BY REGION Japan
A significant portion of the Company’s products are sold in 12.5%
international markets. Star Micronics is actively engaged in Others
expanding its business globally and has established 38.0%
production and sales bases in various regions. Details of USA
the Group’s principal bases are presented as follows: 26.9%
China
22.6%
USA U.K. Germany France Switzerland China Thailand
Special Star Micronics  Star Micronics Star Precisions Ltd. Star Micronics
Products America, Inc. Europe Ltd. Southeast Asia
Co., Ltd.
Machine Star CNC Star Micronics  Star Micronics ~ Star Machine Star Micronics ~ Shanghai Star Micronics  Star Micronics
Tools Machine Tool GB Ltd. GmbH Tool France AG Xingang Manufacturing  (Thailand) Co.,
Corp. SAS Machinery Dalian Co., Ltd.  Ltd.
Co., Ltd.

Star Micronics
Manufacturing
(Thailand) Co.,
Ltd.

Substantial increase in net sales across

all regions

In the year under review, the ratio of overseas sales as a
proportion of total sales came to 87.5%, up 0.1 of a
percentage point compared with the previous year.

By region, net sales in the U.S. amounted to ¥17,315
million (US$150,565 thousand), an increase of ¥3,607
million, or 26.3%.

Net sales in China came to ¥14,543 million
(US$126,461 thousand), an increase of ¥4,106 million,
or 39.3%.

In Japan, net sales totaled ¥8,072 million (US$70,191
thousand), an upswing of ¥2,318 million, or 40.3%.

Overseas Sales and
Proportion of Total Sales
(Billions of yen, %)

2/"18 12/"18* 12/19 12/20 12/°21
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

Star Micronics Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
December 31, 2021

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)
Assets 2021 2020 2021
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 17) ¥ 27,199 ¥ 23,029 $ 236,513
Marketable securities (Notes 5 and 17) 1,896
Short-term investments (Notes 6 and 17) 377 338 3,278
Receivables (Notes 7 and 17):
Trade notes and accounts receivable 18,495 14,241 160,826
Unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies 58 55 504
Other 1,044 1,025 9,078
Allowance for doubtful receivables (137) (109) (1,191)
Inventories (Note 8) 17,823 14,124 154,983
Prepaid expenses and other 848 294 7,374
Total current assets 65,707 54,893 571,365
Property, plant and equipment:
Land 1,893 1,889 16,461
Buildings and structures 15,328 15,087 133,287
Machinery and equipment 20,885 20,073 181,609
Lease assets (Note 16) 153 159 1,330
Construction in progress 175 4 1,522
Other 1,507 893 13,104
Total 39,941 38,105 347,313
Accumulated depreciation (25,632) (23,833) (222,887)
Net property, plant and equipment 14,309 14,272 124,426
Investments and other assets:
Investment securities (Notes 5 and 17) 77 691 6,235
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies 332 326 2,887
Deferred tax assets (Note 14) 599 747 5,209
Other assets 697 693 6,061
Total investments and other assets 2,345 2,457 20,392
Total ¥ 82,361 ¥ 71,622 $716,183

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)

Liabilities and equity 2021 2020 2021
Current liabilities:
Payables (Note 17):

Trade notes and accounts payable ¥11,967 ¥ 5,775 $104,061
Unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies 1 1 9
Other 3,192 1,722 27,756

Short-term bank loans (Notes 9 and 17) 2,500

Current portion of convertible bonds (Notes 9 and 17) 8,007
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 9) 261 166 2,270
Income taxes payable (Note 14) 811 370 7,052
Accrued expenses 1,100 695 9,565
Other 2,173 1,298 18,896
Total current liabilities 19,505 20,534 169,609

Long-term liabilities:

Long-term debt (Note 9) 789 396 6,861
Liability for retirement benefits (Note 10) 130 707 1,131
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 14) 125 75 1,087
Other 84 88 730

Total long-term liabilities 1,128 1,266 9,809

Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 16)

Equity (Notes 11, 12 and 23):
Common stock — authorized, 158,000,000 shares;
issued, 44,091,334 shares in 2021

and 45,091,334 shares in 2020 12,722 12,722 110,626
Capital surplus 13,854 13,058 120,469
Stock acquisition rights (Note 12) 421 429 3,661
Retained earnings 41,814 38,298 363,600

Treasury stock — at cost,

5,367,223 shares in 2021

and 9,787,046 shares in 2020 (7,067) (12,077) (61,452)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 84 27 730
Foreign currency translation adjustments (830) (3,352) (7,217)
Defined retirement benefit plans 477 164 4,148
Total 61,475 49,269 534,565
Noncontrolling interests 253 553 2,200
Total equity 61,728 49,822 536,765
Total ¥82,361 ¥ 71,622 $716,183

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Income

Star Micronics Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)
2021 2020 2021

Net sales ¥64,360 ¥45,671 $559,652
Cost of sales (Note 10) 41,756 30,349 363,095

Gross profit 22,604 15,322 196,557
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Notes 10 and 15) 15,189 13,149 132,079

Operating income 7,415 2,173 64,478
Other income (expenses):
Interest and dividend income 173 178 1,504
Interest expense (19) (20) (165)
Foreign exchange (loss) gain — net (2) 266 17)
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 20 152 174
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (16) 37) (139)
Gain on liquidation of subsidiaries and associates 165 1,435
Other — net 228 176 1,982

Other income (expenses) — net 549 715 4,774
Income before income taxes 7,964 2,888 69,252
Income taxes (Note 14):

Current 2,062 1,011 17,930
Deferred 112 120 974

Total income taxes 2,174 1,131 18,904
Net income 5,790 1,757 50,348
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 50 25 435
Net income attributable to owners of the parent ¥ 5,740 ¥ 1,732 $ 49,913

Yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)

Per share of common stock (Notes 2.s, 11 and 20):
Basic net income ¥150.83 ¥49.07 $1.31
Diluted net income 142.38 42.46 1.24
Cash dividends applicable to the year 58.00 58.00 0.50

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Star Micronics Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)
2021 2020 2021
Net income ¥5,790 ¥1,757 $50,348
Other comprehensive income (Note 19):
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities 57 (89) 495
Foreign currency translation adjustments 2,663 (785) 23,157
Defined retirement benefit plans 313 52 2,722
Share of other comprehensive gain (loss) in associates 12 2) 104
Total other comprehensive income 3,045 (824) 26,478
Comprehensive income ¥8,835 ¥ 933 $76,826
Total comprehensive income attributable to (Note 19):
Owners of the parent ¥8,757 ¥ 914 $76,148
Noncontrolling interests 78 19 678

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Star Micronics Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Thousands Millions of yen
Accumulated other
Outstanding comprehensive income (I0ss)
number of Unrealized Foreign Defined
shares of Stock Treasury gain on currency  retirement Non-
common Common Capital  acquisition Retained stock-  available-for- translation benefit controlling Total
stock stock surplus rights earnings atcost sale securities  adjustments plans Total  interests equity
Balance, December 31,2019 35249  ¥12,722 ¥13,060  ¥421 ¥38541 ¥(12,144) Y116 ¥(2,571) ¥112 ¥50,247 ¥543 ¥50,790
Net income attributable to
owners of the parent 1,732 1,732 1,732
Cash dividends,
¥58.0 per share (1,975) (1,975) (1,975)
Purchase of treasury stock ©) o] ©) o]
Disposal of treasury stock 55 8 67 75 75
Net change in the year 8 89 (781) 52 (810) 10 (800)
Balance, December 31,2020 35,304 ¥12,722 ¥13,0568  ¥429 ¥38,298 ¥(12,077) ¥ 27 Y3352 ¥164 ¥49,269 ¥553 ¥49,822
Net income attributable to
owners of the parent 5,740 5,740 5,740
Cash dividends,
¥58.0 per share (2,224) (2,224) (2,224)
Purchase of treasury stock (1,431) (2,266) (2,266) (2,266)
Disposal of treasury stock 46 16 56 72 72
Conversion of convertible
bonds 4,805 2,071 5,929 8,000 8,000
Retirement of treasury stock (1,291) 1,291
Net change in the year 8) 57 2,522 313 2,884 (3000 2,584
Balance, December 31,2021 38,724  ¥12,722 ¥13,854  ¥421 ¥41.814 ¥ (7,067) ¥ 84 ¥ (830) ¥477 ¥61,475 ¥253 ¥61,728
Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)
Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss)
Unrealized Foreign Defined
Stock Treasury gain on currency  retirement Non-
Common Capital  acquisition Retained stock-  available-for- translation benefit controlling Total
stock surplus rights earnings atcost sale securities  adjustments plans Total interests equity
Balance, December 31, 2020 $110,626 $113,548 $3,730 $333,026 $(105,018) $235 $(29,147) $1,426 $428,426 $4,809 $433,235

Net income attributable to owners of

the parent 49,913 49,913 49,913
Cash dividends, $0.50 per share (19,339) (19,339) (19,339)
Purchase of treasury stock (19,704) (19,704) (19,704)
Disposal of treasury stock 139 487 626 626
Conversion of convertible bonds 18,009 51,556 69,565 69,565
Retirement of treasury stock (11,227) 11,227
Net change in the year (69) 495 21,930 2,722 25,078 (2,609) 22,469

Balance, December 31, 2021 $110,626 $120,469 $3,661 $363,600 $ (61,452)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Star Micronics Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)
2021 2020 2021
Operating activities:
Income before income taxes ¥ 7,964 ¥ 2,888 $ 69,252
Adjustments for:
Income taxes — paid (1,811) (1,639) (15,748)
Depreciation and amortization 2,127 2,255 18,496
Gain on liquidation of subsidiaries and associates (165) (1,435)
Provision for (reversal of allowance for) doubtful receivables 18 3) 157
Gain on sale and disposal of property, plant and equipment (4) (115) (35)
Increase in trade receivables (2,475) (218) (21,522)
(Increase) decrease in inventories (3,045) 5,832 (26,478)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables 6,009 (1,463) 52,252
Decrease in liability for retirement benefits (130) (141) (1,130)
Other - net 1,113 (653) 9,678
Total adjustments 1,637 3,955 14,235
Net cash provided by operating activities 9,601 6,843 83,487
Investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,052) (1,955) (9,148)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 24 1,092 209
Decrease (increase) in short-term investments 1,100 (600) 9,565
Purchases of marketable and investment securities (600) (200) (5,218)
Proceeds from sale of marketable and investment securities 1,410 600 12,261
Other - net (141) (190) (1,226)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 741 (1,253) 6,443
Financing activities:
Decrease in short-term bank loans (2,500) (21,739)
Dividends paid to shareholders (2,223) (1,977) (19,330)
Dividends paid to noncontrolling shareholders of consolidated subsidiaries (232) 9) (2,017)
Repayments to noncontrolling shareholders (147) (1,278)
Payments for purchase of treasury stock (2,269) 0) (19,731)
Disposal of treasury stock 14 20 122
Other - net (202) (170) (1,757)
Net cash used in financing activities (7,559) (2,1306) (65,730)
Foreign currency translation adjustments on cash and cash equivalents 1,387 (232) 12,061
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,170 3,222 36,261
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 23,029 19,807 200,252
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ¥27,199 ¥23,029 $236,513
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Increase in capital surplus due to conversion of convertible bonds ¥ 2,071 $ 18,009
Decrease in treasury stock due to conversion of convertible bonds 5,929 51,556
Decrease in convertible bonds due to conversion of convertible bonds ¥ 8,000 $ 69,565

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Star Micronics Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year Ended December 31, 2021

1 Basis of Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth
in the Japanese Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and its related accounting regulations and in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”), which are different in certain respects as
to application and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been
made to the consolidated financial statements issued domestically in order to present them in a form which is more
familiar to readers outside of Japan.

In addition, certain reclassifications have been made in the consolidated financial statements of the year ended
December 31, 2020 to conform to the classifications used in the year ended December 31, 2021.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which Star
Micronics Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is incorporated and operates. The translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S.
dollar amounts is included solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan and has been made at the rate of
¥115 to $1, the approximate rate of exchange at December 31, 2021.

Such translation should not be construed as a representation that the Japanese yen amounts could be
converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2021, include the accounts of the Company and its 17 (18
in 2020) significant subsidiaries (together, the “Group”).

Under the control and influence concepts, those companies in which the Company, directly or indirectly, is able
to exercise control over operations are fully consolidated, and those companies over which the Group has the ability
to exercise significant influence are accounted for by the equity method.

Investment in one (one in 2020) associated company is accounted for by the equity method. Investments in the
remaining associated companies are stated at cost. If the equity method of accounting had been applied to the
investments in these companies, the effect on the accompanying consolidated financial statements would not be
material.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. All material
unrealized profit included in assets resulting from transactions within the Group is also eliminated.

b. Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Under Accounting Standards Board of Japan (“ASBJ”) Practical Issues Task Force (“PITF”) No. 18, “Practical Solution
on Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries for the Consolidated Financial Statements,” the
accounting policies and procedures applied to a parent company and its subsidiaries for similar transactions and
events under similar circumstances should in principle be unified for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. However, financial statements prepared by foreign subsidiaries in accordance with either International
Financial Reporting Standards or generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (Financial
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification—"“FASB ASC”) tentatively may be used for the
consolidation process, except for the following items that should be adjusted in the consolidation process so that net
income is accounted for in accordance with Japanese GAAP, unless they are not material: (a) amortization of good-
will; (b) scheduled amortization of actuarial gain or loss of pensions that has been recorded in equity through other
comprehensive income; (c) expensing capitalized development costs of R&D; (d) cancellation of the fair value model
of accounting for property, plant and equipment and investment properties and incorporation of the cost model of
accounting; and (e) recording a gain or loss through profit or loss on the sale of an investment in an equity instrument
for the difference between the acquisition cost and selling price, and recording impairment loss through profit or loss
for other-than-temporary declines in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument, where a foreign subsidiary
elects to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument.
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c. Business Combinations

d. Cash Equivalents

e. Inventories

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. Acquisition-related costs, such as advisory
fees or professional fees, are accounted for as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred. If the initial
accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the business combi-
nation occurs, an acquirer shall report in its financial statements provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. During the measurement period, which shall not exceed one year from the acquisition, the
acquirer shall retrospectively adjust the provisional amounts recognized at the acquisition date to reflect new informa-
tion obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date and that would have affected the
measurement of the amounts recognized as of that date. Such adjustments shall be recognized as if the accounting
for the business combination had been completed at the acquisition date. The acquirer recognizes any bargain
purchase gain in profit or loss immediately on the acquisition date after reassessing and confirming that all of the
assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed have been identified after a review of the procedures used in the
purchase price allocation. A parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary might change if the parent purchases or sells
ownership interests in its subsidiary. The carrying amount of noncontrolling interest is adjusted to reflect the change
in the parent’s ownership interest in its subsidiary while the parent retains its controlling interest in its subsidiary. Any
difference between the fair value of the consideration received or paid and the amount by which the noncontrolling
interest is adjusted is accounted for as capital surplus as long as the parent retains control over its subsidiary.

Cash equivalents are short-term investments that are readily convertible into cash and that are exposed to insignifi-
cant risk of changes in value.

Cash equivalents include time deposits, certificates of deposit and investment trusts in bonds that represent
short-term investments, all of which mature or become due within three months of the date of acquisition.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (substantially determined by the average method for the Company and its
consolidated subsidiaries in Japan, and by the first-in, first-out method for the consolidated subsidiaries outside of
Japan) or net selling value.

f. Marketable and Investment Securities

All investment securities are classified as available-for-sale securities.

Marketable available-for-sale securities are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of appli-
cable taxes, reported in a separate component of equity. The cost of securities sold is determined based on the
moving-average method.

Nonmarketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost determined by the moving-average method. For
other-than-temporary declines in fair value, nonmarketable available-for-sale securities are reduced to net realizable
value by a charge to income.

Investments in limited partnerships, which are considered securities under Article 2, Clause 2 of the Japanese
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, are recorded under the equity method and based on the latest consolidated
financial statements available on the reportable date ruled by the partnership contracts.

g. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of the Company and
its consolidated subsidiaries in Japan is computed substantially by the declining-balance method based on the
estimated useful lives of the assets, while the straight-line method is applied to substantially all of the consolidated
subsidiaries outside of Japan.

The range of useful lives is principally from 15 to 50 years for buildings and structures and from 2 to 15 years for
machinery and equipment. The useful lives for lease assets are the terms of the respective leases.

h. Long-lived Assets

The Group reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized if the
carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to
result from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. The impairment loss would be
measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of the discounted cash flows from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or the net selling
price at disposition.
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i. Retirement and Pension Plans

The Company has a noncontributory funded pension plan covering substantially all of its employees. To provide for
the payment of retirement benefits and pension plan payments to employees, the Company recorded a reserve
equivalent to the amounts recognized as necessary at the end of the period under review based on the projected
retirement benefits obligation and the fair value of the pension plan assets at the balance sheet date.

The Company accounts for the liability for retirement benefits based on the projected benefit obligations and
plan assets at the balance sheet date. The projected benefit obligations are attributed to periods on a benefit formula
basis. Actuarial gains and losses that are yet to be recognized in profit or loss are recognized within equity (@ccumu-
lated other comprehensive income), after adjusting for tax effects and are recognized in profit or loss over 11 years no
longer than the expected average remaining service period of the employees. The discount rate is determined using
a single weighted-average discount rate reflecting the estimated timing and amount of benefit payment.

Domestic consolidated subsidiaries have lump-sum retirement benefit plans, and certain consolidated foreign
subsidiaries have lump-sum retirement benefit plans or defined contribution pension plans.

j- Asset Retirement Obligations

k. Stock Options

An asset retirement obligation is recorded for a legal obligation imposed either by law or contract that results from the
acquisition, construction, development and normal operation of a tangible fixed asset and is associated with the
retirement of such tangible fixed asset. The asset retirement obligation is recognized as the sum of the discounted
cash flows required for the future asset retirement and is recorded in the period in which the obligation is incurred if a
reasonable estimate can be made. If a reasonable estimate of the asset retirement obligation cannot be made in the
period the asset retirement obligation is incurred, the liability should be recognized when a reasonable estimate of the
asset retirement obligation can be made. Upon initial recognition of a liability for an asset retirement obligation, an
asset retirement cost is capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of the related fixed asset by the amount of the
liability. The asset retirement cost is subsequently allocated to expense through depreciation over the remaining
useful life of the asset. Over time, the liability is accreted to its present value each period. Any subsequent revisions to
the timing or the amount of the original estimate of undiscounted cash flows are reflected as an adjustment to the
carrying amount of the liability and the capitalized amount of the related asset retirement cost.

Compensation expense for employee stock options that were granted on and after May 1, 2006 are recognized
based on the fair value at the date of grant and over the vesting period as consideration for receiving goods or
services in accordance with ASBJ Statement No. 8, “Accounting Standard for Share-based Payment.” Stock options
granted to nonemployees are accounted for based on the fair value of either the stock option or the goods or
services received. In the consolidated balance sheet, the stock option is presented as a stock acquisition right as a
separate component of equity until exercised.

I. Bonuses to Directors and Audit and Supervisory Committee Members

m. Leases

Bonuses to directors and Audit and Supervisory Committee Members are accrued at the year end to which such
bonuses are attributable.

Finance lease transactions are capitalized by recognizing lease assets and lease obligations in the consolidated
balance sheet.

In March 2007, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 13, “Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions,” which
revised the previous accounting standard for lease transactions. Under the previous accounting standard, finance
leases that were deemed to transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee were capitalized. However, other
finance leases were permitted to be accounted for as operating lease transactions if certain “as if capitalized”
information was disclosed in the notes to the lessee’s financial statements. The revised accounting standard permits
leases that existed at the transition date and that do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee to
continue to be accounted for as operating lease transactions.

All other leases are accounted for as operating leases.

On January 13, 2016, International Accounting Standards Board issued IFRS No. 16, “Lease,” which requires a
lessee to recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value.

Subsidiaries except for Japan and US have applied the standards of “Lease” (IFRS No. 16).

n. Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs are charged to income as incurred.
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0. Income Taxes  The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income included in the consolidated statement of
income. The asset and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected
future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and
liabilities. Deferred taxes are measured by applying currently enacted income tax rates to the temporary differences.

p. Foreign Currency Transactions

All short-term and long-term monetary receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into Japanese yen at the exchange rates as of the balance sheet date. The foreign exchange gains and losses from
translation are recognized in the consolidated statement of income to the extent that they are not hedged by forward
exchange contracts.

qg. Foreign Currency Financial Statements

The balance sheet accounts of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen at the current
exchange rates as of the balance sheet date except for equity, which is translated at the historical rate.

Differences arising from such translation are shown as “Foreign currency translation adjustments” under accu-
mulated other comprehensive income in a separate component of equity.

Revenue and expense accounts of consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into yen at the average
exchange rate.

r. Derivatives The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposures to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.
Foreign exchange forward contracts are utilized by the Group to reduce foreign currency exchange risks. The Group
does not enter into derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.

All derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value, and gains or losses on
derivative transactions are recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

The foreign exchange forward contracts employed to hedge foreign exchange exposures for export sales are
measured at fair value and the unrealized gains/losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

s. Per Share Information
Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income attributable to common shareholders by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period.

Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities were exercised. Diluted
net income per share of common stock assumes full conversion of the outstanding convertible bonds and stock
acquisition rights at the beginning of the year (or at the time of issuance) with an applicable adjustment for related
interest expense and net of tax.

Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated statement of income are dividends
applicable to the respective fiscal years, including dividends to be paid after the end of the year.

t. Accounting Changes and Error Corrections

In December 2009, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 24, “Accounting Standard for Accounting Changes and
Error Corrections,” and ASBJ Guidance No. 24, “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Accounting Changes and
Error Corrections.” Accounting treatments under this standard and guidance are as follows:

(1) Changes in Accounting Policies — When a new accounting policy is applied following revision of an accounting
standard, the new policy is applied retrospectively unless the revised accounting standard includes specific
transitional provisions, in which case the entity shall comply with the specific transitional provisions.

(2) Changes in Presentation — When the presentation of financial statements is changed, prior-period financial
statements are reclassified in accordance with the new presentation.

(8) Changes in Accounting Estimates — A change in an accounting estimate is accounted for in the period of the
change if the change affects that period only, and is accounted for prospectively if the change affects both the
period of the change and future periods.

(4) Corrections of Prior-Period Errors — When an error in prior-period financial statements is discovered, those state-
ments are restated.

u. Changes in Presentation
Adoption of “Accounting Standard for Disclosure of Accounting Estimates”
On March 31, 2020, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 31, “Accounting Standard for Disclosure of Accounting
Estimates.” The Company adopted the accounting standard to the consolidated financial statements for the current
consolidated fiscal year, and therefore significant accounting estimates are disclosed in the note to the consolidated
financial statements. The note does not include information for the prior consolidated fiscal year in accordance with
the transitional provision set out in paragraph 11 of the Accounting Standard.
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Consolidated statement of income

For the year ended December 31, 2021, Share of loss of entities accounted for using equity method individually
presented in the Statement of income in the previous year, was included in “Other” under Other income (expense) as
it was immaterial. The amount of Share of loss of entities accounted for using equity method in the previous year was
¥40 million.

v. New Accounting Pronouncements

Revenue Recognition
On March 31, 2020, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 29, “Revised Accounting Standard for Revenue
Recognition,” and revised ASBJ Guidance No. 30, “Revised Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for
Revenue Recognition” on March 26, 2021. The core principle of the standard and guidance is that an entity should
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. An entity should
recognize revenue in accordance with that core principle by applying the following steps:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

The accounting standard and guidance are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021.
Earlier application is permitted for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018.

The Company expects to apply the accounting standard and guidance for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022, and is in the process of measuring the effects of applying the accounting standard and guidance in
future applicable periods.

Marketable and Investment Securities
On July 4, 2019, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 30, “Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement” and
revised ASBJ Guidance No. 31, “Revised Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value
Measurement” on June 17, 2021, and related ASBJ Statements and ASBJ Guidance. Under this standard, nonmar-
ketable available-for-sale equity securities are stated at cost, while under the current accounting standard, nonmar-
ketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost.

The Company expects to apply the accounting standard and guidance for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022, and is in the process of measuring the effects of applying the accounting standard and guidance in
future applicable periods.

3 Significant Accounting Estimate

a. Deferred Tax Accounting

(1) Carrying amounts
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)
2021 2021
Deferred tax assets ¥599 $5,209

(2) Information on the significant accounting estimate
The Group accounts for a temporary difference as deferred tax assets when it satisfies recoverability based on the
future taxable profit reasonably estimated. The deferred tax asset regarding tax loss carryforwards is disclosed in
Note “14. Income Taxes.”

There is a high degree of uncertainty in a premise for demand and sales trend assuming future taxable profits.
A variety of the factors, which the Group considered in evaluating the recoverability of deferred tax assets, may have
an additional impact on taxable profit or the temporary difference, and will consequently affect the profit and loss.

b. Impairment of Long-lived Assets

(1) Carrying amounts
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)
2021 2021
Long-lived assets ¥14,309 $124,426
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(2) Information on the significant accounting estimate
The Group recognizes the carrying amounts of the relevant asset written down to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of fair value less cost to sell or the value in use, as an impairment loss when there is any indication that the
asset or asset group may be impaired. No impairment of long-lived assets was recognized in 2021.

There is a high degree of uncertainty in a premise for a business plan for the calculation of value in use. In the
event of an unforeseen change in the business environment adversely affecting assumptions for the valuation of
assets or asset groups, an impairment may be incurred.

4 Additional Information

Estimation Uncertainty Associated with Accounting Estimates
Demand in the Group’s primary market has experienced a recovery trend although uncertainties remained due to the
COVID-19 pandemic.

The Group made accounting estimates in its assessment of impairment of long-lived assets and recoverability of
deferred tax assets based on the assumption that the situation surrounding the Group will be continuously on a
recovery trend after the following fiscal year.

There are uncertainties regarding the extent of the impact from COVID-19 and when it will subside. Therefore,
there is a possibility that the Group will incur losses in the future if the effect of COVID-19 is prolonged.

5 Marketable and Investment Securities

Marketable and investment securities at December 31, 2021 and 2020, consisted of the following:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)

2021 2020 2021
Current:
Corporate and other bonds ¥ 796
Trust fund investments and other 1,100
Total ¥1,896
Non-current:
Equity securities ¥218 ¥ 174 $1,896
Corporate and other bonds 377 303 3,278
Trust fund investments and other 122 214 1,061
Total ¥717 ¥ 691 $6,235

The costs and aggregate fair values of securities classified as available-for-sale at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
were as follows:

Millions of yen
2021 Cost Unrealized gains Unrealized losses Fair value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Marketable equity securities ¥104 ¥45 ¥149
Corporate and other bonds 400 ¥23 377
Trust fund investments and other 29 38 67
Millions of yen
2020 Cost Unrealized gains Unrealized losses Fair value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Marketable equity securities ¥ 118 ¥7 ¥16 ¥ 109
Corporate and other bonds 1,100 3 5 1,098
Trust fund investments and other 1,129 39 1,168
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2021 Cost
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:

Marketable equity securities $ 905
Corporate and other bonds 3,478
Trust fund investments and other 252

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)

Unrealized gains Unrealized losses Fair value
$391 $1,296

$200 3,278

331 583

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, were ¥3,009
million ($26,165 thousand) and ¥9,200 million, respectively. Gross realized gains and losses on these sales, com-
puted on the moving-average cost basis, for the year ended December 31, 2021, were ¥14 million ($122 thousand)
and ¥4 million ($35 thousand), and for the year ended December 31, 2020, were ¥14 million and nil, respectively.

6 Short-term Investments

Short-term investments at December 31, 2021 and 2020, consisted of the following:

Deposits over three-month period
Total

7 Trade Notes and Accounts Receivable

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)
2021 2020 2021
¥377 ¥338 $3,278
¥377 ¥338 $3,278

The Group follows the practice of including installment receivables due after one year (less unearned interest) in

current assets.

Receivables due after one year (less unearned interest) amounted to ¥999 million ($8,686 thousand) and ¥876

million at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

8 Inventories

Inventories at December 31, 2021 and 2020, consisted of the following:

Merchandise

Finished products

Work in process

Raw materials and supplies
Total

9 Short-term Bank Loans and Long-term Debt

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)

2021 2020 2021
¥ 754 ¥ 666 $ 6,557
8,804 7,594 76,556
4,620 3,423 40,174
3,645 2,441 31,696
¥17,823 ¥14,124 $154,983

Short-term bank loans at December 31 2020, consisted of bank overdrafts. The annual interest rate applicable for the

year ended December 31, 2020 was 0.11%.

Long-term debt at December 31, 2021 and 2020, consisted of the following:

Zero-coupon convertible bonds due 2021
Lease obligations

Others

Total

Less: current portion

Long-term debt, less current portion

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)

2021 2020 2021
¥8,007
¥ 82 76 $ 713
968 486 8,418
1,050 8,669 9,131
261 8,173 2,270
¥ 789 ¥ 396 $6,861
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Annual maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2021, were as follows:

Years ending December 31 Millions of yen

2022 ¥ 261
2023 245
2024 206
2025 148
2026 117
2027 and thereafter 73
Total ¥1,050

10 Retirement and Pension Plans

Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 1)

$2,270
2,131
1,791
1,287
1,017
635
$9,131

The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries have severance payment plans for employees. Under the

pension plans, employees terminating their employment are entitled to pension payments in most circumstances.
Certain consolidated subsidiaries use a simplified method, which is permitted for small-sized companies in

conformity with the Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits for calculating liability for retirement benefits and

retirement benefit expenses for their severance payment plans.

(1) The changes in defined benefit obligation for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows:

Millions of yen

2021 2020

Balance at beginning of year ¥9,245 ¥9,394
Current service cost 169 186
Interest cost 98 100
Actuarial gains and losses (89) 15
Benefits paid (422) (449)
Others (0) M

Balance at end of year ¥9,001 ¥9,245

(2) The changes in plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows:

Millions of yen
2021 2020

Balance at beginning of year ¥8,538 ¥8,471

Expected return on plan assets 214 212

Actuarial gains and losses 350 99

Contributions from the employer 191 203

Benefits paid (422) (447)
Balance at end of year ¥8,871 ¥8,538

Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 1)

2021

$80,391
1,470
852
(774)
(3,669)
(0)
$78,270

Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 1)

2021
$74,243
1,861
3,044
1,661
(3,670)
$77,139

(8) Reconciliation between the liability recorded in the consolidated balance sheet and the balances of defined benefit

obligation and plan assets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows:

Millions of yen
2021 2020
Funded defined benefit obligation ¥ 8,911 ¥ 9,165
Plan assets (8,871) (8,538)
Total 40 617
Unfunded defined benefit obligation 90 90
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation ¥ 130 ¥ 707
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 1)

2021
$77,487
(77,139)
348
783
$ 1,131



Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)
2021 2020 2021
Liability for retirement benefits ¥130 ¥707 $1,131
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation ¥130 ¥707 $1,131

(4) The components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)
2021 2020 2021
Service cost ¥ 169 ¥ 186 $1,470
Interest cost 98 100 852
Expected return on plan assets (214) (212) (1,861)
Recognized net actuarial gains and losses 7 (11) 61
Net periodic benefit costs ¥ 60 ¥ 63 $ 522

(5) Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (before income tax effect) in respect of defined retirement

benefit plans for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)
2021 2020 2021
Actuarial gains and losses Y446 ¥74 $3,878
Total ¥446 ¥74 $3,878

(6) Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (before income tax effect) in respect of defined

retirement benefit plans as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)

2021 2020 2021
Unrecognized actuarial gains and losses ¥(680) ¥(234) $(5,913)
Total ¥(680) ¥(234) $(5,913)
(7) Plan assets
a. Components of plan assets
Plan assets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, consisted of the following:

2021 2020

Debt investments 24% 24%
Equity investments 26 24
General account 31 33
Others 19 19
Total 100% 100%

b. Method of determining the expected rate of return on plan assets
The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering the long-term rates of return which are
expected currently and in the future from the various components of the plan assets.

(8) Assumptions used for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, are set forth as follows:

2021 2020
Discount rate 1.1% 1.1%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 2.5% 2.5%
Expected rate of salary increase 41% 4.1%

(9) Defined contribution pension plan
The amounts of the required contribution to the defined contribution plans of the consolidated subsidiaries were ¥177
million ($1,539 thousand) and ¥150 million for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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11 Equity

(a) Dividends

Japanese companies are subject to the Companies Act of Japan (the “Companies Act”). The significant provisions in
the Companies Act that affect financial and accounting matters are summarized below.

Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends at any time during the fiscal year in addition to the year-end
dividend upon resolution at the shareholders’ meeting. Additionally, for companies that meet certain criteria including
(1) having a Board of Directors, (2) having independent auditors, (3) having an Audit and Supervisory Board, and (4)
the term of service of the directors being prescribed as one year rather than the normal two-year term by its articles
of incorporation, the Board of Directors may declare dividends (except for dividends-in-kind) at any time during the
fiscal year if the company has prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. With respect to the third condition above,
the Board of Directors of companies with (a) board committees (namely, appointment committee, compensation
committee and audit committee) or (b) an audit and supervisory committee (as implemented under the Companies
Act effective May 1, 2015) may also declare dividends at any time because such companies, by their nature, meet the
criteria under the Companies Act. The Company is organized as a company with an audit and supervisory
committee, effective May 26, 2016. The Company mesets all the above criteria and, accordingly, the Board of
Directors may declare dividends (except for dividends-in-kind) at any time during the fiscal year.

The Companies Act permits companies to distribute dividends-in-kind (noncash assets) to shareholders subject
to certain limitations and additional requirements.

Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon resolution by the Board of Directors if the
articles of incorporation of the company so stipulate. The Companies Act provides certain limitations on the amounts
available for dividends or the purchase of treasury stock. The limitation is defined as the amount available for
distribution to the shareholders, but the amount of net assets after dividends must be maintained at no less than
¥3 million.

(b) Increases / Decreases and Transfer of Common Stock, Reserve and Surplus

The Companies Act requires that an amount equal to 10% of dividends must be appropriated as a legal reserve (a
component of retained earnings) or as additional paid-in capital (a component of capital surplus), depending on the
equity account charged upon the payment of such dividends, until the total of the aggregate amount of legal reserve
and additional paid-in capital equals 25% of the common stock. Under the Companies Act, the total amount of
additional paid-in capital and legal reserve may be reversed without limitation of such threshold. The Companies Act
also provides that common stock, legal reserve, additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus and retained earnings
can be transferred among the accounts within equity under certain conditions upon resolution of the shareholders.

(c) Treasury Stock and Treasury Stock Acquisition Rights

The Companies Act also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock and dispose of such treasury stock by
resolution of the Board of Directors. The amount of treasury stock purchased cannot exceed the amount available for
distribution to the shareholders which is determined by a specific formula.

Under the Companies Act, stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate component of equity.

The Companies Act also provides that companies can purchase both treasury stock acquisition rights and
treasury stock. Such treasury stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate component of equity or deducted
directly from stock acquisition rights.
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12 Stock Options

The stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2021, were as follows:

Stock Option
2014 1 Stock Option

2015 I Stock Option

2015 1I Stock Option

2016 I Stock Option

2016 1I Stock Option

2017 I Stock Option

2017 1 Stock Option

2018 I Stock Option

2018 I Stock Option

2019 I Stock Option

2019 II Stock Option

2020 I Stock Option

2020 II Stock Option

2021 Stock Option

Persons Granted

5 directors

6 directors

5 directors

3 executive officers

16 employees

9 directors of subsidiaries

3 directors
3 executive officers

3 directors

6 executive officers

18 employees

9 directors of subsidiaries

3 directors
4 executive officers

3 directors

6 executive officers

19 employees

8 directors of subsidiaries

3 directors
4 executive officers

1 director

6 executive officers

18 employees

8 directors of subsidiaries

3 directors
4 executive officers

7 executive officers
16 employees
8 directors of subsidiaries

3 directors
5 executive officers

5 executive officers
15 employees
8 directors of subsidiaries

5 executive officers
16 employees
8 directors of subsidiaries

Number of
Options Granted

283,100 shares

17,100 shares

154,000 shares

36,200 shares

168,000 shares

24,700 shares

148,000 shares

24,400 shares

175,000 shares

42,700 shares

161,000 shares

59,900 shares

138,000 shares

141,000 shares

Date of Grant
June 9, 2014

June 15, 2015

June 15, 2015

June 13, 2016

June 13, 2016

June 12, 2017

June 12, 2017

June 11, 2018

June 11, 2018

April 15, 2019

April 15, 2019

April 13, 2020

April 13, 2020

April 12, 2021
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Exercise Price

¥ 1

¥1,149

¥1,720

Exercise Period
From June 9, 2014
to June 8, 2044

From June 15, 2015
to June 14, 2045

From June 30, 2017
to June 29, 2021

From June 13, 2016
to June 12, 2046

From June 29, 2018
to June 28, 2022

From June 12, 2017
to June 11, 2047

From July 1, 2019
to June 30, 2023

From June 11, 2018
to June 10, 2048

From July 1, 2020
to June 30, 2025

From April 15, 2019
to April 14, 2049

From June 1, 2021
to May 31, 2026

From April 13, 2020
to April 12, 2050

From June 1, 2022
to May 31, 2027

From June 1, 2023
to May 31, 2028
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The stock option activity was as follows:
Shares
20141 20151 20151 20161 2016 1 20171 201711
Stock Option Stock Option Stock Option Stock Option Stock Option Stock Option Stock Option

Year ended
December 31, 2020

Non-vested

December 31, 2019 —
Qutstanding

Granted
Canceled
Vested

December 31, 2020 —
Outstanding

Vested

December 31, 2019 —
Outstanding 18,900 12,900 137,000 36,200 122,700 24,700 138,000

Vested
Exercised (3,400) (2,500) (14,100) (16,000) (5,400)
Canceled (4,000) (2,000) (2,000)

December 31, 2020 —
Outstanding 15,500 10,400 133,000 22,100 104,700 19,300 136,000

Year ended
December 31, 2021

Non-vested

December 31, 2020 —
QOutstanding

Granted
Canceled
Vested

December 31, 2021 —
Outstanding

Vested

December 31, 2020 —
Outstanding 15,500 10,400 133,000 22,100 104,700 19,300 136,000

Vested
Exercised (11,000)
Canceled (133,000)

December 31, 2021 —
Outstanding 15,500 10,400 22,100 93,700 19,300 136,000

Exercise price ¥ 1 ¥ 1 ¥2,203 ¥ 1 ¥1,289 ¥ 1 ¥1,830
$ 0 $ 0 $ 19 $ 0 $ M $ 0 $ 16
Average stock price ¥1,822
at exercise $ 16
Fair value price ¥1,209 ¥1,995 ¥ 407 ¥ 088 ¥ 165 ¥1,384 ¥ 246
at grant date $ 11 $ 17 $ 4 $ 9 $ $ 12 $ 2
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20181
Stock Option

Year ended
December 31, 2020

Non-vested

December 31, 2019 —
Qutstanding

Granted
Canceled
Vested

December 31, 2020 —
Outstanding

Vested

December 31, 2019 —
Outstanding 24,400

Vested
Exercised (5,000)
Canceled

December 31, 2020 —
Outstanding 19,400

Year ended
December 31, 2021

Non-vested

December 31, 2020 —
Outstanding

Granted
Canceled
Vested

December 31, 2021 —
Outstanding

Vested

December 31, 2020 —
Outstanding 19,400

Vested
Exercised
Canceled

December 31, 2021 —
Outstanding 19,400

Exercise price ¥ 1
$ 0
Average stock price
at exercise
Fair value price ¥1,644
at grant date $ 14

2018 I

Stock Option

169,000

(3,000)
(166,000)

166,000

166,000

166,000

166,000

¥2,017
$ 18

¥ 308
$ 3

20191
Stock Option

42,700

(8,700)

34,000

34,000

34,000

¥1,608
$ 14

Shares

20191 20201 2020 I 2021
Stock Option Stock Option Stock Option Stock Option

161,000
59,900 138,000
(59,900)
161,000 138,000
59,900
59,900
161,000 138,000
141,000
(161,000)
138,000 141,000
59,900
161,000

161,000 59,900

¥1,805 ¥ ¥1,149 ¥1,720
$ 16 $ o0 $ 10 $ 15

¥ 352 ¥ 866 ¥ 157 ¥ 206
$ 3 $ 8 $ 1 $ 3

The assumptions used to measure fair value of the 2021 Stock Options were as follows:
Black-Scholes option pricing model

Estimate method:

Volatility of stock price:

Estimated remaining outstanding period:
Estimated dividend:

Risk free interest rate:

32.583%

4.6 years

¥58.00 per share

(0.108)%
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13 Restricted Stock Compensation

The restricted stock compensation outstanding as of December 31, 2021, was as follows:

Number of
Restricted Stock Compensation Persons Granted Shares Granted Date of Grant
2021 Restricted Stock Compensation 3 directors 34,500 shares April 22, 2021

4 executive officers

Notes: 1. The transfer restriction period is from the grant date to the date immediately after retiring the position of either a director or
an executive officer.

2. The transfer restrictions on all allotted stock shall be lifted upon the expiration of the transfer restriction period provided
that the eligible directors, etc., continuously hold the position of company director or executive officer of the company who
does not serve as a director from the date of commencement of the execution of duties until immediately before the
conclusion of the first general meeting of shareholders thereafter (if the allottee is an executive officer of the company who
does not serve as a director, from the starting date of the fiscal year that includes the grant date until the end of the current
fiscal year.)

The restricted stock compensation activity was as follows:
Shares
2021
Restricted Stock Compensation

Year ended December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020 — Outstanding

Granted 34,500
Forfeited
Released
December 31, 2021 — Outstanding 34,500
Fair value price at grant date ;1 ,622
14

14 Income Taxes

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries in Japan are subject to Japanese national and local income taxes
which, in the aggregate, resulted in a normal effective statutory tax rate of approximately 29.9% for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020.
Consolidated subsidiaries outside of Japan are subject to income taxes of the countries in which they operate.
The tax effects of significant temporary differences and loss carryforwards which resulted in deferred tax assets

and liabilities at December 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)
2021 2020 2021

Deferred tax assets
Unrealized profit on inventories ¥ 376 ¥ 10 $ 3,270
Tax loss carryforwards 360 766 3,130
Depreciation 339 314 2,948
Accrued bonuses 275 183 2,391
Inventories 166 205 1,444
Liability for retirement benefits 33 206 287
Impairment loss 26 43 226
Other — net 515 317 4,478
Less valuation allowance (290) (293) (2,522)
Total 1,800 1,751 15,652
Deferred tax liabilities
Undistributed earnings of associated companies (1,136) (899) (9,878)
Other — net (190) (180) (1,652)
Total (1,326) (1,079) (11,530)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ¥ 474 ¥ 672 $ 4,122
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The expiration of tax loss carryforwards, the related valuation allowances and the resulting net deferred tax assets as

of December 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows:
Millions of yen
After 1 Year  After 2 Years After 3 Years After 4 Years

o1r Izzrs through through through through 56;;2:3 Total
2021 2 Years 3 Years 4 Years 5 Years
Deferred tax assets relating to tax
loss carryforwards ¥8 ¥352 ¥360
Less valuation allowances for tax
loss carryforwards
Net deferred tax assets relating to tax
loss carryforwards ¥8 ¥352 ¥360
Millions of yen
1 Year After 1 Year  After 2 Years After 3 Years After 4 Years After
or Less through through through through 5 Years Total
2020 2 Years 3 Years 4 Years 5 Years
Deferred tax assets relating to tax
loss carryforwards ¥766 ¥766
Less valuation allowances for tax
loss carryforwards
Net deferred tax assets relating to tax
loss carryforwards ¥766 ¥766
Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)
1 Year After 1 Year  After 2 Years After 3 Years After 4 Years After
or Less through through through through 5 Years Total
2021 r 2 Years 3 Years 4 Years 5 Years "
Deferred tax assets relating to tax
loss carryforwards $69 $3,061 $3,130

Less valuation allowances for tax
loss carryforwards
Net deferred tax assets relating to tax
loss carryforwards $69 $3,061 $3,130

Notes: 1. The amounts of tax loss carryforwards were multiplied by the normal effective statutory tax rates.
2. The deferred tax assets relating to tax loss carryforwards for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, were ¥360
million ($3,130 thousand) and ¥766 million, respectively. The Company expects to recover the total amount of the tax loss
carryforwards through the estimated future taxable profits.

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
and the actual effective tax rate reflected in the accompanying consolidated statement of income was as follows:

2021 2020
Normal effective statutory tax rate 29.9% 29.9%
Undistributed earnings of associated companies 5.9 71
Effect of foreign tax rate differences (4.6) (6.6)
Unrealized profit on inventories (2.0) 10.2
Research and development tax credits (0.9)
Valuation allowance 0.0 (1.2)
Other — net (1.0) 0.2
Actual effective tax rate 27.3% 39.2%

15 Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs charged to income were ¥1,650 million ($14,348 thousand) and ¥1,470 million for
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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16 Leases

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries lease certain machinery, computer equipment, office space and
other assets.

Obligations under noncancelable operating leases at December 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)
2021 2020 2021
Due within one year ¥ 50 ¥34 $ 435
Due after one year 299 39 2,600
Total ¥349 ¥73 $3,035

17 Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures

(1) Group Policy for Financial Instruments

The Group invests cash surpluses in low-risk financial instruments and raises funds by bank loans and convertible
bonds. Derivatives are used mainly to manage foreign exchange risks, not for speculative purposes.

(2) Nature, Extent of Risks Arising from, and Risk Management for Financial Instruments

Trade receivables, such as trade notes and accounts receivable, are exposed to customer credit risk. The Group
manages its credit risk from receivables on the basis of its internal guidelines, which include monitoring of the
payment term and balance of each customer. The Group also periodically checks the credit status of key customers.

Investment securities, which are mainly debt instruments, are exposed to market risk. The Group periodically
monitors market values of these securities and reports them to the management.

Trade payables, such as trade notes and accounts payable, are mostly due within one year.

The Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts to manage exchange risks arising from receivables and
payables denominated in foreign currencies. Derivative transactions entered into by the Group have been made
in accordance with internal policies which prescribe the authorization, and the result is reported to management.
The Group also limits the counterparties of these derivatives to major international financial institutions to reduce
credit risk.

With regard to trade payables, the Group is exposed to liquidity risk. The Group manages this risk through
periodic financial planning by each Group company.

(3) Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Fair values of financial instruments are based on their quoted market price, if available. If a quoted price is not avail-
able, other rational valuation techniques are used instead.

() Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)

Carrying Unrealized Carrying Unrealized
December 31, 2021 amount Fair value gain/loss amount Fair value gain/loss
Cash and cash equivalents ¥27,199 ¥27,199 $236,513 $236,513
Marketable and investment securities 593 593 5,157 5,157
Short-term investments 377 377 3,278 3,278
Trade receivables 18,553 18,553 161,330 161,330
Total ¥46,722 ¥46,722 $406,278 $406,278
Trade payables ¥11,968 ¥11,968 $104,070  $104,070
Total ¥11,968 ¥11,968 $104,070 $104,070
Derivatives ¥ (65 ¥ (565 $ (@478 $ (478)
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Millions of yen

Carrying Unrealized
December 31, 2020 amount Fair value gain/loss
Cash and cash equivalents ¥23,029 ¥23,029
Marketable and investment securities 2,375 2,375
Short-term investments 338 338
Trade receivables 14,296 14,296
Total ¥40,038 ¥40,038
Trade payables ¥ 5776 ¥ 5,776
Short-term bank loans 2,500 2,500
Convertible bonds 8,007 8,376 ¥369
Total ¥16,283 ¥16,652 ¥369
Derivatives ¥ (1) ¥ 1

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments approximate fair value because of their
short maturities.

Marketable and investment securities

The fair values of marketable and investment securities are measured at the quoted market prices of the stock
exchange for equity instruments, and at the quoted prices obtained from the financial institution for certain debt
instruments. Fair value information for marketable and investment securities by classification is included in Note 5.

Trade receivables

The carrying values of receivables approximate fair value because of their short maturities. Further, the carrying
values of receivables due in more than one year, arising from some overseas subsidiaries having installment sales,
are measured in a rational manner, discounted at the Group’s assumed corporate discount rate.

Trade payables and short-term bank loans
The carrying values of payables and short-term bank loans approximate fair value because of their short maturities.

Convertible bonds
The carrying values of convertible bonds are measured at the quoted price obtained from the financial institution.

Derivatives
Information on the fair value of derivatives is included in Note 18.

(b) Carrying Amount of Financial Instruments Whose Fair Value Cannot be Reliably Determined
Carrying amount
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)
2021 2020 2021

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted

market price in an active market ¥ 69 ¥ 65 $ 600
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated

companies 229 223 1,992
Investments in limited partnerships 55 146 478
Total ¥353 ¥434 $3,070
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(4) Maturity Analysis for Financial Assets and Securities with Contractual Maturities

Millions of yen
Due in one Due after one year Due after five years Due after
December 31, 2021 year or less through five years through ten years ten years
Cash and cash equivalents ¥27,199
Marketable and investment securities ¥ 455
Short-term investments 377
Trade receivables 17,554 999
Total ¥45,130 ¥1,454
Millions of yen
Due in one Due after one year Due after five years Due after
December 31, 2020 year or less through five years through ten years ten years
Cash and cash equivalents ¥23,029
Marketable and investment securities 1,900 ¥ 358 ¥88
Short-term investments 338
Trade receivables 13,420 876
Total ¥38,687 ¥1,234 ¥88
Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)
Due in one Due after one year Due after five years Due after
December 31, 2021 year or less through five years through ten years ten years
Cash and cash equivalents $236,513
Marketable and investment securities $ 3,957
Short-term investments 3,278
Trade receivables 152,644 8,686
Total $392,435 $12,643
18 Derivatives
Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied
Millions of yen
Contracted
Contracted amount due Unrealized
At December 31, 2021 amount after one year Fair value gain/loss
Foreign currency forward contracts:
Selling ¥4,677 ¥(51) ¥(51)
Buying 178 4) (4)
Total ¥4,855 ¥(55) ¥(55)
Millions of yen
Contracted
Contracted amount due Unrealized
At December 31, 2020 amount after one year Fair value gain/loss
Foreign currency forward contracts:
Selling ¥3,438 ¥(1) ¥(1)
Buying 111 0 0
Total ¥3,549 ¥(1) ¥(1)
Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)
Contracted
Contracted amount due Unrealized
At December 31, 2021 amount after one year Fair value gain/loss
Foreign currency forward contracts:
Selling $40,669 $(443) $(443)
Buying 1,548 (35) (35)
Total $42,217 $(478) $(478)
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19 Other Comprehensive Income

The components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, were as

follows:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)
2021 2020 2021

Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities:

Gains (losses) arising during the year ¥ 64 ¥ (88) $ 557

Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss 8) (70)

Amount before income tax effect 56 (88) 487

Income tax effect 1 (1) 8

Total ¥ 57 ¥ (89) $ 495
Foreign currency translation adjustments:

Adjustments arising during the year ¥2,842 ¥(785) $24,713

Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss (179) (1,556)

Total ¥2,663 ¥(785) $23,157
Defined retirement benefit plans:

Adjustments arising during the year ¥ 439 ¥ 85 $ 3,817

Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss 7 (11) 61

Amount before income tax effect 446 74 3,878

Income tax effect (133) (22) (1,156)

Total ¥ 313 ¥ 52 $ 2,722
Share of other comprehensive income in an associate:

Gains (losses) arising during the year ¥ 12 ¥ (2 $ 104

Total ¥ 12 ¥ (2 $ 104
Total other comprehensive income (loss) ¥3,045 ¥(824) $26,478

20 Net Income Per Share

Reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted net income per share (“EPS”) for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, was as follows:

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Millions of yen shares Yen (Note 1)
Net income
attributable to Weighted-
owners of the parent average shares EPS
Year ended December 31, 2021
Basic EPS
Net income attributable to common shareholders ¥5,740 38,056 ¥150.83 $1.31
Effect of dilutive securities
Convertible bonds (7) 1,975
Stock acquisition rights 237
Diluted EPS
Net income for computation ¥5,733 40,268 ¥142.38 $1.24
Year ended December 31, 2020
Basic EPS
Net income attributable to common shareholders ¥1,732 35,287 ¥ 49.07
Effect of dilutive securities
Convertible bonds (24) 4,771
Stock acquisition rights 174
Diluted EPS
Net income for computation ¥1,708 40,232 ¥ 42.46
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21 Segment Information

Under ASBJ Statement No. 17, “Accounting Standard for Segment Information Disclosures,” and ASBJ Guidance No.
20, “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Segment Information Disclosures,” an entity is required to report financial
and descriptive information about its reportable segments. Reportable segments are operating segments or aggre-
gations of operating segments that meet specified criteria. Operating segments are components of an entity about
which separate financial information is available and such information is evaluated regularly by the chief operating
decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. Generally, segment information
is required to be reported on the same basis as is used internally for evaluating operating segment performance and
deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments.

1. Description of reportable segments
The Group’s reportable segments are those for which separate financial information is available and regular evalua-
tion by the Company’s management is being performed in order to decide how resources are allocated among the
Group. Therefore, the Group has two reportable segments: “Special Products” and “Machine Tools.”

“Special Products” produces and sells POS printers and others.

“Machine Tools” produces and sells CNC automatic lathes and others.

2. Methods of measurement for the amounts of sales, profit (loss), assets, liabilities and other items for each report-
able segment

The accounting policies of each reportable segment are consistent with those disclosed in Note 2, “Summary of

Significant Accounting Policies.”

3. Information about sales, profit (loss), assets, liabilities and other items.

Millions of yen
Reportable Segment
Special Machine
December 31, 2021 Products Tools Total Reconciliations Consolidated
Sales to external customers ¥15,570 ¥48,790 ¥64,360 ¥64,360
Intersegment sales or transfers
Total 15,570 48,790 64,360 64,360
Segment profit ¥ 2,283 ¥ 6,858 ¥ 9,141 ¥ (1,726) ¥ 7,415
Segment assets ¥12,537 ¥55,791 ¥68,328 ¥14,033 ¥82,361
Other items:
Depreciation 338 1,550 1,888 239 2,127
Investments in associates 229 229 229
Increase in property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets 182 1,667 1,849 77 1,926
Millions of yen
Reportable Segment
Special Machine
December 31, 2020 Products Tools Total Reconciliations Consolidated
Sales to external customers ¥11,721 ¥33,950 ¥45,671 ¥45,671
Intersegment sales or transfers
Total 11,721 33,950 45,671 45,671
Segment profit ¥ 1,546 ¥ 2,697 ¥ 4,243 ¥ (2,070) ¥ 2,173
Segment assets ¥ 9,081 ¥46,751 ¥56,732 ¥14,890 ¥71,622
Other items:
Depreciation 353 1,619 1,972 283 2,255
Investments in associates 223 223 223
Increase in property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets 111 1,570 1,681 227 1,908

33  AnnualReport 2021 STAR MICRONICS CO., LTD.



Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)

Reportable Segment
Special Machine
December 31, 2021 Products Tools Total Reconciliations Consolidated
Sales to external customers $135,391 $424,261 $559,652 $559,652
Intersegment sales or transfers
Total 135,391 424,261 559,652 559,652
Segment profit $ 19,852 $ 59,635 $ 79,487 $ (15,009) $ 64,478
Segment assets $109,018 $485,139 $594,157 $122,026 $716,183
Other items:
Depreciation 2,939 13,478 16,417 2,079 18,496
Investments in associates 1,991 1,991 1,991
Increase in property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets 1,582 14,496 16,078 670 16,748

Notes: 1. Reconciliations recorded for segment profit include corporate expenses that are not allocated to any reportable segment.
Corporate expenses principally consist of general corporate expenses incurred by the Administration Headquarters of the
Company.

2. Reconciliations recorded for segment assets include corporate assets that are not allocated to any reportable segment.
Corporate assets principally consist of assets maintained by the Administration Headquarters of the Company and consist
principally of excess funds under management (cash and cash equivalents).

3. Reconciliations recorded for depreciation include depreciation incurred by corporate assets that are not allocated to any
reportable segment.

4. Reconciliations recorded for increase in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are capital investments
principally for corporate assets that are not allocated to any reportable segment.

5. Segment profit agrees with operating profit in the accompanying consolidated statement of income.

6. Effective the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, the Group has changed the classification of its reportable segments
from three reportable segments: “Special Products,” “Machine Tools” and “Precision Products” to two reportable
segments: “Special Products” and “Machine Tools” as the Company reconsidered operating segments due to a decision to
discontinue the Precision Products Division of the Company in the previous fiscal year.

For comparative purposes, figures of “Precision Products” segment for the corresponding period of the previous
fiscal year have been included in “Machine Tools” segment.

Related Information
Related information by geographical area at December 31, 2021 and 2020, consisted of the following:
(1) Net Sales

Millions of yen
December 31, 2021 Japan USA China Others Total
¥8,072 ¥17,315 ¥14,543 ¥24,430 ¥64,360

Millions of yen
December 31, 2020 Japan USA China Others Total
¥5,754 ¥13,708 ¥10,437 ¥15,772 ¥45,671

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)
December 31, 2021 Japan USA China Others Total

$70,191 $150,565 $126,461 $212,435 $559,652

Note: Sales are classified by country or region based on the location of customers.

(2) Property, Plant and Equipment

Millions of yen
December 31, 2021 Japan China Thailand Others Total
¥8,459 ¥2,607 ¥1,913 ¥1,330 ¥14,309

Millions of yen
December 31, 2020 Japan China Thailand Others Total
¥9,048 ¥1,908 ¥2,099 ¥1,217 ¥14,272

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)
December 31, 2021 Japan China Thailand Others Total

$73,556 $22,670 $16,635 $11,565 $124,426
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22 Related Party Disclosures

Transactions of the Company with related parties for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2021
Not applicable

Year ended December 31, 2020

Related party Category Description of transaction Millions of yen

Hajime Sato Chairman of the Board Exercise of stock options ¥12

23 Subsequent Event

The following appropriation of retained earnings at December 31, 2021, was approved at the Company’s Board of
Directors’ meeting held on February 22, 2022:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)

Year-end cash dividends, ¥29 ($0.252) per share ¥1,123 $9,765
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Independent Auditor’s Report

D I i
e o I tte. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC

AOI TOWER

17-1 Koya-machi, Aoi-ku
Shizuoka-shi, Shizuoka 420-0852
Japan

Tel: +81 (54) 273 8091
Fax: +81 (54) 273 8166
www.deloitte.com/jp/en

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Star Micronics Co., Ltd.:
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Star Micronics Co., Ltd. and its
consolidated subsidiaries (the "Group"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2021, and the consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, all expressed in Japanese
yen.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2021, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Convenience Translation

Our audit also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts
and, in our opinion, such translation has been made in accordance with the basis stated in Note
1 to the consolidated financial statements. Such U.S. dollar amounts are presented solely for
the convenience of readers outside Japan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the provisions of the Code of Professional Ethics
in Japan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities as auditors. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

A key audit matter is a matter that, in our professional judgment, was of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. The matter was addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on the matter.

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Appropriateness of deferred tax assets evaluations

Key Audit Matter Description

How the Key Audit Matter Was Addressed in
the Audit

As stated in Note 3 “Summary of Significant
Accounting Estimate” and Note 14 “Income
Taxes” to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recorded deferred tax
assets totaling 599 million yen as of
December 31, 2021, of which 360 million yen
were related to losses carried forward. The
losses carried forward reported for tax
purposes of Star Micronics Co., Ltd. was
mainly attributable to decrease in sales
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic in the
previous year.

The Group has determined that such losses
carried forward for tax purposes have the
effect of offsetting estimated future taxable
income and reducing future tax burdens and
has recorded the full amount as deferred tax
assets.

Estimated future taxable income is
formulated based on future business plans.
The products of the Group are sold
domestically and overseas, directly or
through domestic/foreign subsidiaries, and
the demand for these products is highly
sensitive to the economic trends and
economic conditions of the customer’s
country or region. Furthermore, the Machine
Tools business, the core business of the
Group, is especially affected by the
customers’ demand for equipment
investment. Demand forecasts and sales
trends involve assumptions that are subject
to management judgment and high degree of
uncertainties, and such assumptions have a
significant impact on future business plans.

The Group makes certain assumptions
based on available information, such as
demand forecasts and sales trends, and
evaluates the recoverability of deferred tax
assets based on estimated future taxable
income considering the achievability of prior
business plans as well as past trends in
demand. Given the significant uncertainty
involved in such assumptions, we identified
the appropriateness of deferred tax asset
evaluations as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures related to the
appropriateness of deferred tax assets
evaluations included the following, among
others:

(1) Evaluation of internal controls

Read accounting policies pertaining to
deferred tax asset recoverability evaluations,
obtained an understanding of the formulation
and approval process of business plans, and
tested the design and operating effectiveness
of relevant internal controls. Such controls
include internal controls over the estimation
of future taxable income based on future
demand forecasts and sales trends.

(2) Substantive procedures

- Tested the appropriateness of the
classification of companies in accordance
with the "Implementation Guidance on
Recoverability of Deferred Tax Assets".

- Evaluated the reasonableness of the
schedule for the reversal of the balance of
temporary differences, etc.

Furthermore, performed the following
procedures to evaluate whether business
plans, which are key inputs for estimated
future taxable income, were prepared in a
reasonable manner.

- Evaluated the reasonableness of the
significant assumptions made by
management pertaining to future business
plans by inquiring of management and
inspecting the minutes of Board of Director
meetings

- Tested the accuracy of estimates based on
how successful business plans were in the
previous years as well as evaluations of
uncertainty made by management that reflect
a certain level of risk.

- Evaluated the reasonableness of demand
forecasts and sales trends, which are key
inputs for business plans, by comparing them
with world economic outiook reports
published by external organizations as well
as figures published by the Japan Machine
Tool Builders' Association, among others.
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- Evaluated the reasonableness of sales
forecasts and cost forecasts considering the
state of order backlogs, inventories and
expected timing for shipping, etc., which are
key inputs for business plans, by inquiring of
persons in charge of relevant divisions and
inspecting relevant documents.

Responsibilities of Management and the Audit and Supervisory Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit and Supervisory Committee is responsible for overseeing the Directors' execution of
duties relating to the design and operating effectiveness of the controls over the Group's
financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in Japan will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment. In addition, we obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
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+ Obtain, when performing risk assessment procedures, an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate whether the overall presentation and disclosures of the consolidated financial
statements are in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, as well
as the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Supervisory Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Supervisory Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with it all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit and Supervisory Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Interest Required to Be Disclosed by the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan

Our firm and its designated engagement partners do not have any interest in the Group which is
required to be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of the Certified Public Accountants Act of
Japan.

Delpitte Touche Zobmots LLL-

March 24, 2022
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STOCK INFORMATION

as of December 31, 2021

Common Stock Authorized 158,000,000 Stock Listing First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange*?
Issued 44,091,334 Transfer Agent  Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation

Paid-in Capital 12,721,939,515 yen 1-4-5 Marunouchi, Chiyoda,

Number of Shareholders 10,727 Tokyo 100-8212, Japan

*1 The decrease in the number of shares issued was due to a retirement of 1,000,000 shares.
*2 Shift to the Prime Market from the First Section due to the market restructuring of the Tokyo Stock Exchange in April 2022.

COMPOSITION OF SHAREHOLDERS

(%)
Other Companies Securities Companies
Dec. 2021 34.4% 3.8% 23.9% 22.7% 3.0% 12.2%
; : T Japanese Individuals Foreign Institutions ; ;
Financial Institutions and Others and Individuals Star Micronics

Dec. 2020 36.4% 3.6% 21.4% 15.1% 1.8% 21.7%

STOCK PRICE RANGE (TOKYO STOCK EXCHANGE)

(Yen) (Yen)
3,000 30,000
2,000 20,000
1,000 10,000

- ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ 0
= Closing Price of Star Micronics (Left) = Nikkei Stock Average (Right)

TRADING VOLUME
(Thousands of shares)
20,000

15,000
10,000
5,000

0 N R a N N

Feb. 2018 Dec. 2018 Dec. 2019 Dec. 2020 Dec. 2021

Notes: 1. This trading volume shows the monthly volume of trade on the Tokyo Stock Exchange.
2. Stock prices of Star Micronics and the Nikkei Stock Average are based on a simple average of daily closing prices for each day of every month at the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

STOCK PRICE

(Yen)

Year Feb. 2018 Dec. 2018 Dec. 2019 Dec. 2020 Dec. 2021
At year-end 2,213 1,491 1,575 1,654 1,549
High 2,480 2,270 1,893 1,720 1,893
Low 1,588 1,332 1,258 945 1,416
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